
 

HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
 

AGENDA 
 

BOD Agenda February 25, 2025 Page 1 of 2 

 
DATE:  Tuesday, February 25, 2025 
 
TIME:   5:00 p.m. 
 
LOCATION: 5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, CA 

 
Teleconference locations: 5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, CA 

 
The HCSD Boardroom is open to the public during the meeting's open session 
segment. This meeting is also held by video/teleconference, per CA Govt Code § 
54953(b). If a member of the public cannot attend in person and would like to speak on 
an agenda item, including Public Participation, please join through the Zoom website 
(https://zoom.us) by entering Meeting ID 388 963 6754 and Passcode 202520.  Access 
may also be achieved via telephone only by dialing 1-669-900-9128. 
 

A. ROLL CALL 
 

Directors Benzonelli, Gardiner, Hansen, Matteoli, Ryan 
 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approval of February 25, 2025 Agenda 
2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 11, 2025 

 

D. REPORTS 
 

1. General Manager 
 

a) District Update 
 

2. Finance Department 
 

3. Engineering 
 

a) Update 
 

4. Planning  
 

5. Legal Counsel   
 

6. Director Reports 
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 1 of 40

rchristensen
Typewritten text
Pgs. 1-2Pgs. 3-6Pgs. 7Pgs. 9-10



BOD Agenda February 25, 2025  Page 2 of 2 

7. Other 
 

E. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Members of the public may comment on items not on the agenda. Please use the 
information above to participate via Zoom. The Board requests that speakers please 
state their name and where they are from, be concise, and limit communications to 3 
to 5 minutes. After all oral communications, the Board or staff may briefly respond 
with information in response to comments; however, the Brown Act prohibits 
discussion of matters not on the published agenda. Matters requiring discussion or 
action will be placed on a future agenda. 

 

F. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consideration of Adoption Resolution 2025-03: Supporting a Feasibility Study to 
Establish a Parks Department as a Special District Latent Power 

2. Consideration of Bid Results and Award of Contract for the Walnut Drive 
Earthquake Recovery and Resiliency Project 

3. Consideration of Vehicles that Have Previously Been Declared Surplus 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Next Res:  2025-04 
Next Ord:  2025-01 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact Robert Christensen at (707) 443-4558, ext. 210, or by email at 
asm@humboldtcsd.org.  Notification 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102 – 35.104 ADA Title II). 
 

Pursuant to §54957.5(a) of the California Government Code, any public record writings relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors, not otherwise exempt 
from public disclosure, are available for public inspection upon request at the District offices located at 
5055 Walnut Drive, Monday through Friday (holidays excepted) during regular business hours. 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 2 of 40

rchristensen
Typewritten text
Pgs. 11-14Pgs. 15-38Pgs. 39-40



DRAFT MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Page 1 of 4    February 11, 2025 

The Humboldt Community Services District Board of Directors met in regular session at 
5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, February 11, 2025, at 5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, California, 
with public participation available via Zoom tele/video conference. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Present upon roll call: Directors Benzonelli, Gardiner, Hansen, Matteoli, and Ryan.  
Staff in attendance: General Manager Williams (GM), Finance Manager Montag 
(FM), Assistant Engineer Rawal (AE), and Utility Services Planner McNeill (USP) 
 
Director Gardiner joined the meeting via Zoom video conference from 1500 Orange 
Ave, Coronado, CA  

 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Matteoli invited those present to join in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1. Approval of February 11, 2025 Agenda 
2. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 28, 2025 

 
 IT WAS MOVED BY DIRECTOR HANSEN, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR 

BENZONELLI, TO APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 11, 2025 CONSENT CALENDAR. 
MOTION CARRIED UPON THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 

  

 AYES:    BENZONELLI, GARDINER, HANSEN, MATTEOLI, RYAN  
 NOES:  NONE 

 

D. REPORTS 

 

1.  General Manager 
 

a) District Update 
 
GM reported that the 2020 Humboldt County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(LHMP) will expire in March 2025, and the County is developing the 2025 LHMP. 
District staff is engaged in the update effort with the County and operational area 
partners. A draft of the LHMP is anticipated to be available for District adoption 
by May 1, 2025. The County expects the updated LHMP to be in effect by July 
2025. The LHMP is a requirement for the District to be eligible for grant funding 
from FEMA.  
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 3 of 40



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FEBRUARY 11, 2025 

Page 2 of 4    February 11, 2025 

2. Finance Department 
 

a) December Budget Statement 
 
FM reviewed the December Budget Statement and reported that most of the 
items noted had previously been discussed at prior meetings in the FY. 
 
b) January Check Register 

 
FM reported that the January Check register includes the annual fees to the 
State Water Resources Control Board. 

 
3. Engineering 

 
a) Update 
 
AE reported that the District is soliciting bids for the Doctor’s Office Lane Sewer 
Rehabilitation project, which will replace a vitrified clay sewer main that is a 
known trouble spot due to heavy root intrusion. A water main line break occurred 
on February 3rd on Elk River Road. The District repaired the asbestos cement 
main with a leak repair band, flushed the system, and restored service. The 
District completed upgrades to the Fields Landing Sewer Lift Station (SLS). The 
flow capacity of the SLS has increased from 350 gallons per minute (GPM) to 
730 GPM. 
 

4. Planning 
 

a) Update 
 
USP reported that the District submitted an internal Sanitary Sewer Management 
Plan (SSMP) audit to the California Integrated Water Quality System. District 
staff is also in the process of updating the District’s SSMP. The SSMP will be 
presented to the Board for adoption before being submitted to the SWRCB  
before the August 2025 deadline. The District has completed the lead and copper 
service line inventory, and through that process, District staff verified and 
confirmed that there are no lead service lines in the District. 
 

5. Legal Counsel 
 
No report. 
 

6. Director Reports 
 

No report. 
 

E. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 4 of 40



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FEBRUARY 11, 2025 

Page 3 of 4    February 11, 2025 

John Friedenbach, outgoing general manager of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water 
District (HBMWD), announced his retirement, effective April 15.  Michiko Mares, 
incoming general manager of HBMWD, introduced herself and commented that she 
looks forward to collaborating and working with the District in the future. 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. Fiscal Year 2025 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) update. 
 

GM reported that the CIP incorporates four sections: Water, Sewer, Office and 
Yard, and Vehicles and Equipment. Projects for water and sewer are paid for 
using the respective enterprise funds. The remaining projects are paid from both 
water and sewer funds 
 
GM referenced Table 1 in the associated agenda report, which describes the 
budgeted amount for Water CIP projects, the spending to date, and the projected 
spending for each of the specific CIP projects planned in FY 2025.  Most water 
projects are proceeding as planned and within their allocated budget. GM noted 
that the Stanford Circle and Temple Circle Steel Main Replacement (SMR) 
projects were scheduled to conclude in FY 2024 but were completed in FY 2025. 
The District has postponed the Shady Lane SMR project due to the capacity of 
the District’s Construction Department. The District CIP includes funding for 
replacing Pressure Reducing Valves (PRV). After the District’s annual inspection 
of PRVs, it was determined that no rehabilitation or replacement is necessary. 
The District also determined that the county has not planned any ADA access 
projects within the District this year. Therefore, the District will not expend any 
funds allocated for County ADA access support.   
 
GM referenced Table 2 in the associated agenda report, which describes the 
budgeted amount for Sewer CIP projects, the spending to date, and the projected 
spending for each of the specific CIP projects planned in FY 2025. Most sewer 
projects are on schedule and within budget. The Christine SLS, the South 
Broadway Forcemain project, the Hemlock and Hartman Lane “reversal” project, 
and the Walnut Drive Trouble Spot and Lateral projects will be postponed. 
 
The District is ahead of schedule in completing the SCADA projects and plans to 
complete them by the conclusion of FY 2026. The project was initially scheduled 
over a five-year period, but due to consistent failures of the existing SCADA 
system, the SCADA projects were accelerated. Staff ordered all components 
necessary to complete the SCADA projects, allowing the District to access 
discount pricing. Fund-specific costs for the SCADA were provided in Tables 1 
and 2. 
 
GM reviewed Table 3 and noted that the Yard Paving Project will be postponed. 
All other Office and Yard Projects are proceeding and are projected to come 
within budget, except for a slight overage in the Office ADA project. GM noted 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 5 of 40



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FEBRUARY 11, 2025 

Page 4 of 4    February 11, 2025 

that Grant Writing Assistance was not budgeted in the 2025 CIP and that costs 
associated with Grant Writing Assistance were included in Table 3. 
 
Table 4 outlines vehicle and equipment projects for FY 2025. All purchases are 
projected to be under budget. 
 
GM noted that $712,000 of funding allocated for current-year CIP projects would 
be held in reserve to be allocated to fund capital projects in subsequent years 
($177K to the Water fund and $595K to the Sewer fund). 

 
Director Matteoli asked for additional information on the South Bay School Back 
Flow Device CIP project. GM explained that the South Bay School has a District 
water main across their property. HCSD’s meter is inside the gate, near the 
building. HCSD will move the meter outside of the school’s fence line and install 
a backflow device. After the project HCSD will release the infrastructure on the 
school’s property (including hydrants and service main) to the school district.  
 

G. CLOSED SESSION 

 

AT 5:28 P.M. IT WAS MOVED BY DIRECTOR RYAN, SECONDED BY DIRECTOR 

HANSEN,  TO MOVE INTO CLOSED SESSION. MOTION CARRIED UPON THE 
FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 

 
AYES:  BENZONELLI, HANSEN, GARDINER, MATTEOLI, RYAN 
NOES: NONE 
 
1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.5(e) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – General Manager 
 
The Board returned to open session at 5:49 p.m., and President Matteoli 
reported that the Board had taken no action. 

 

H. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 There being no further business, IT WAS MOVED BY DIRECTOR HANSEN, 

SECONDED BY DIRECTOR BENZONELLI, TO ADJOURN. MOTION CARRIED 
UPON THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE: 

   

AYES:  BENZONELLI, GARDINER, HANSEN, MATTEOLI, RYAN 
NOES: NONE 

 

THE BOARD ADJOURNED ITS REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2025 AT 
5:50 P.M. 

 
 

       ______________________________ 
                Submitted, Board Secretary 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 6 of 40



Humboldt Community Services District 
Dedicated to providing high quality, cost effective water and sewer service for our customers 

Mailing:  Post Office Box 158 • Cutten, CA  95534 • tel (707) 443-4558 • fax (707) 443-1490 
Physical Address:  5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, CA  95503 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Terrence Williams, General Manager  
 
DATE:   February 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:  General Manager Report for February 25, 2025 Board Meeting 
 
 
 

Employee Appreciation Dinner 

Historically, the District’s annual Employee Appreciation Dinner (EA Dinner) has been 

organized by a department (Customer Service, Maintenance, Construction, Engineering, 

Administration) and the responsibility rotated from department to department each year.  

After the January 19, 2024 EA Dinner, the Employee Association had a meeting and decided 

that we would no longer burden individual departments with organizing the EA Dinner.  An 

EA Dinner committee was established, and they were tasked with organizing the EA Dinner 

this year.  They have settled on a date, Friday, March 14, and a place, The Greene Lily in 

Old Town Eureka.   I look forward to good food and good times with our amazing team! 

Utility Worker Position 

We have a utility worker position available in our maintenance department.  If you know 

anybody who wants to work with an incredible team, please encourage them to apply.  More 

information is available on the District website under Human Resources and Career 

Opportunities.   

Picture Day 

On Friday, February 21, District staff arranged themselves and two District trucks in front of 

the District office.  A local photographer with a drone got us all into position and snapped a 

few shots to generate some interesting imagery for the website (Figure 1).  As a reminder, 

the photographer will be here at 4 pm on Tuesday, February 25, before the Board meeting, 

to capture images of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

  

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 7 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 8 of 40

rchristensen
Typewritten text
PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Humboldt Community Services District 
Dedicated to providing high-quality, cost-effective water and sewer service for our customers 

Mailing:  Post Office Box 158 • Cutten, CA  95534 • tel (707) 443-4558 • fax (707) 443-0818 
Physical Address:  5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, CA  95503 

 
ENGINEERING MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Kush Rawal, Assistant Engineer  

Date: February 20, 2025  

Subject: Assistant Engineer Progress Report for February 25, 2025 Board Meeting  
_____________________________________________________________ 

 
Donna Drive Temporary Water Storage System 
 
In preparation for the Donna Drive Tank Rehabilitation Project, slated to begin April 1, 
2025, District forces are working to complete the Donna Drive Temporary Water 
Storage System. The temporary system consists of four polyethylene tanks (Figure 1).  
Each temporary poly tank is 12 feet in diameter and 20 feet high with a volume of 
15,500 gallons These tanks were originally purchased for the Ridgewood Tank 
Rehabilitation project to serve as a temporary water storage while the main Ridgewood 
Tank system was offline. The District planned to reuse the poly tanks to serve the 
Donna Drive area while the Donna Drive 0.5-MG tank is offline.  
 
The District is located in a seismically active area, so a seismic design was created to 
ensure the temporary water storage tanks remain secure during a seismic event. The 
District attached guy wires to bust anchors that expand underground to resist the 
maximum allowable tension. Figure 2 shows a diagram of how the expanding bust 
anchors are installed. 
 
District forces are now working to complete the plumbing necessary to connect the 
temporary system to the District’s water system through the Donna Drive Booster 
Station. Before the temporary system is put online, the water storage tanks and 
plumbing will be disinfected conforming to current AWWA standards for Water Storage 
Facility Disinfection, bacteriological samples will be tested to maintain the quality of the 
Districts water system quality. 

 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 9 of 40



 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Figure 1: This picture shows the four recently installed temporary water storage tanks at the District’s 
Donna Drive Water Tank Site. 

 
 

Figure 2: This diagram shows the process of installing the expanding bust anchors provided by 
MacLean, the manufacturer of the anchors the District used for the Temporary Water Storage Tank 
Project. 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 10 of 40



Humboldt Community Services District 
Dedicated to providing high quality, cost effective water and sewer service to our customers                                                                                                                             

 

 
Post Office Box 158   •   Cutten, CA 95534   •   (707) 443-4558   •   Fax (707) 443-0818 

 

AGENDA REPORT 
 

For HCSD Board of Directors Regular Meeting of: February 25, 2025  
 
AGENDA ITEM: F.1 
 
TITLE:  Resolution 2025-03: Supporting a Feasibility Study to Establish a 

Parks Department as a Special District Latent Power 
 
Presented by: Terrence Williams, General Manager 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Review and Discuss Parks Department Study and District’s Latent Powers activation. A 
motion and roll call vote is requested to adopt Resolution 2025-03. 
 
Summary:  
 
Humboldt Community Services District (HCSD) is a Special District that provides services 
within its established boundaries.  Community Services Districts are authorized to provide 
a number of services and facilities to its residents that are outlined in the CA Govt Code § 
61100, part of the Community Services District Enabling Act. 
 
CA Govt Code § 61100 (e) states that a district may “Acquire, construct, improve, 
maintain, and operate recreation facilities, including, but not limited to, parks and open 
space, in the same manner as a recreation and park district formed pursuant to the 
Recreation and Park District Law.” 
 
Community members, non-profit organizations, elected officials from other agencies and 
District Board members have all expressed interest in HCSD expanding its authorized 
services to include the operations of a parks department. The District is currently 
authorized to provide water distribution, wastewater collection and street lighting to the 
community. Operating and maintaining recreation facilities is considered a “latent power” 
of the District. 
 
Prior to activating a latent power, the District must thoroughly consider and study the 
impacts, feasibility, and costs associated with operating a parks department.  The District 
would also be required to apply to the Humboldt County Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo). As part of the application, the District would need to submit a plan 
for services detailing what new infrastructure, if any, would be needed to provide the new 
services, the cost of providing new services and how the services would be funded, and 
other items that are identified in CA Govt Code §56653(b). To approve the activation of 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 11 of 40



Supporting a Feasibility Study to Establish a Parks Department as a Special District Latent 
Power 
Board of Directors Meeting February 25, 2025 

 

powers, the Commission must determine that the District will have sufficient revenues to 
carry out the proposed new services.   
 
District staff has explored funding for a Park Community Needs Assessment and 
Feasibility Study.  Over 96% of the District’s budget is restricted to funding water and/or 
sewer services. In November 2024, District Staff met with California State Coastal 
Conservancy (SCC) staff to discuss the need for funding a Park Community Needs 
Assessment and Feasibility Study. SCC Staff encouraged the District to submit a grant 
pre-application for consideration. The District submitted the grant pre-application and 
recently received an invitation to submit a full application to the SCC. SCC staff have 
requested that the HCSD Board of Directors provide formal direction to staff that they 
support exploring the establishment of a parks department before submitting a complete 
application. 
 
District staff has estimated that a Park Community Needs Assessment and Feasibility 
Study would cost approximately $250,000. District staff has identified community 
organizations and associations that may be willing to provide matching funds to support 
the study and will work with individual board members to solicit matching funds. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
District staff will present a FY 2026 budget that includes a $15,000 contribution of general 
fund revenue for costs associated with the study.  This represents a portion of the 
matching funds necessary to obtain the grant.  Staff will solicit additional matching funds 
from other sources. 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 12 of 40



Page 1 of 2 

 HCSD RESOLUTION NO.  2025-03 

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE  

HUMBOLDT COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORTING A FEASIBILITY STUDY TO ESTABLISH A PARKS 

DEPARTMENT AS A SPECIAL DISTRICT LATENT POWER 

 

 
 WHEREAS, the Humboldt Community Services District (“District”) is a community 
services district, duly formed as authorized by Government Code Sections 61000 through 
61802; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the District has the authority to activate latent powers, including park 
services, subject to approval by the Local Agency Formation Commission; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors recognizes the need for a comprehensive 
feasibility study to assess the financial, operational, and community impacts of establishing 
a parks department within the District; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the feasibility study would evaluate potential funding sources, 
operational structures, service areas, and community support for the provision of park 
services; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, community input and stakeholder engagement, including other local 
agencies, school districts, and tribal governments, will be key components of the study to 
ensure alignment with the needs and priorities of District residents; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, HCSD has been approached by individuals and organizations in the 
community, including the Redwood Region Audubon Society and Redwood Fields, about 
managing established and future potential park locations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, elected officials from other agencies have expressed support for the 
District to explore the establishment of a parks department; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the HCSD Board of Directors has informally expressed interest in 
supporting parks within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, numerous studies, including research by the Trust for Public Land 
(2006) and John Crompton’s The Proximate Principle (2004), have demonstrated that well-
maintained parks and green spaces can increase residential property values by 5% to 20%, 
providing long-term economic benefits to the community; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Humboldt 
Community Services District hereby supports initiating a feasibility study to explore 
establishing a parks department as an activated latent power of the District. 
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 13 of 40



Page 2 of 2 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board directs District staff to seek necessary 
funding opportunities and engage with relevant stakeholders to advance this study. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Humboldt Community Services District held this __ day of _______, by 
the following roll call vote: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
      ABSENT:   
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
      Joe Matteoli, Board President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert Christensen, Board Secretary 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 14 of 40



Humboldt Community Services District 
Dedicated to providing high-quality, cost-effective water and sewer service for our customers 

Mailing:  Post Office Box 158 • Cutten, CA  95534 • tel (707) 443-4558 • fax (707) 443-0818 
Physical Address:  5055 Walnut Drive, Eureka, CA  95503 

 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
 
For HCSD Board of Directors Regular Meeting of: February 25, 2025 
 
AGENDA ITEM: F.2  
 
TITLE: Walnut Drive Utility Earthquake Recovery and Resilience Project 

Bid Award Recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY: Kush Rawal, Assistant Engineer 
   
 
 
Recommendation: 
Award the bid to the qualified low bidder by motion and roll call vote. 
 
Summary: 
On February 11, 2025, the District conducted a public bid opening for the submitted 
sealed bids, offering the option for attendees to participate in person or via Zoom. Four 
sealed bids were opened and publicly announced, with Mercer Fraser identified as the 
apparent lowest bidder.  
 
The bidding results, including additive items, are tabulated below: 
 
Allen Gill Construction:  $1,342,291.00 
Wahlund Construction:  $1,200,500.00 
GR Sundberg:        $1,000,450.00 
Mercer Fraser:         $   635,735.00 
 
The completed bid submittal from Mercer Fraser was evaluated by District Staff and no 
reason was found to disqualify the bid. The bid amount is within the amount budgeted 
for the CalOES grant funded earthquake recovery project. District staff does not believe 
rebidding the project will result in a lower cost as prices for construction continue to 
increase annually.  
 
The Walnut Drive Utility Earthquake Recovery and Resilience Project is a grant funded 
project by a disaster assistance grant from CalOES that will redirect our sewer and 
water infrastructure around slide zones sensitive to seismic activity located between 
Hurst Street and Northridge Road where they intersect Walnut Drive. This project is to 
be completed within a window beginning March 31, 2025 and ending November 3, 2025 
over 100 consecutive work days (excluding weekends and holidays). 
 
The scope of work for this project will include:  

a) Replacing approximately 1,200 feet of existing asbestos cement (AC) water main 
line with fused HDPE  

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 15 of 40



Agenda Report: Walnut Drive Utility Earthquake Recovery and Resilience Project Bid Award 
Recommendations 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

b) Replacing approximately 150 feet of existing water service lines with poly 
ethylene lines bringing each property meter to grade  

c) Replacing approximately 850 feet of existing AC sewer main line with HDPE  
d) Replacing approximately 100 feet of existing sewer laterals from the mainline to 

edge of the public right of way with HDPE laterals and bringing each property line 
cleanout to grade  

e) Constructing 6 new manholes  
 
Please pass a motion to award the Walnut Drive Utility Earthquake Recovery and 
Resilience Project to Mercer Fraser. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
$356,807.50 from the Drinking Water Fund 
$278,927.50 from the Sewer Fund 
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 16 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 17 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 18 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 19 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 20 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 21 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 22 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 23 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 24 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 25 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 26 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 27 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 28 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 29 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 30 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 31 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 32 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 33 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 34 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 35 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 36 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 37 of 40



HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 38 of 40



Humboldt Community Services District 
Dedicated to providing high quality, cost effective water and sewer service to our customers                                                                                                                             

 

 
Post Office Box 158   •   Cutten, CA 95534   •   (707) 443-4558   •   Fax (707) 443-0818 

 

AGENDA REPORT 
 

For HCSD Board of Directors Regular Meeting of: February 25, 2025  
 
AGENDA ITEM: F.3 
 
TITLE:  Consideration of Vehicles that Have Previously Been Declared 

Surplus 
 
Presented by: Terrence Williams, General Manager 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive report on surplus-ed vehicles. Consider, discuss, and approve reducing the 
minimum bid for Unit 4B and the minimum sale amount if the vehicle is sold to an agency. 
 
Summary:  
 
At the July 9, 2024, Board meeting, the Board approved declaring two District vehicles, 
Unit 4B and Unit 17B, be declared surplus and selling them through the District’s publicly 
sealed bidding process. Unit 4B is a 2009 Ford F450 Crane Truck, and Unit 17B is a 2001 
Ford E350 Sewer Camera Van. The Board established a minimum bid of $30,000 for Unit 
4B and $18,000 for Unit 17B. 
 
After no bids were received, the Board reduced the minimum bidding requirements for 
both vehicles at the September 10, 2024 Board meeting.  Bid solicitations were published 
again, and the District received more interest, but ultimately, no bids were received. 
 

VEHICLE Unit 4B 2009 Ford F450 
Crane Truck 

Unit 17B 2001 Ford E350 
Sewer Camera Van 

July 9, 2024, Approved 
Minimum Bid  

 

$30,000.00 
 

$18,000.00 

September 10, 2024 
Approved Minimum Bid 

 

$20,000.00 
 

$12,000.00 

 
Recently, employees implementing the new SCADA system have been using Unit 17B. 
Unit 17B has enhanced the efficiency of the SCADA implementation, enabling employees 
to move between locations and access work equipment and the workspace in the vehicle. 
The District would like to keep Unit 17B and return it to service at this time.  Staff 
recommend that the sewer camera be sold separately, as all interested prospective 
bidders have expressed that they are not interested in the camera equipment. 
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 39 of 40



Consideration of Disposition of Vehicles that Have Previously Been Declared Surplus 
Board of Directors Meeting February 25, 2025 

 

Unit 4B, a 2009 Ford F450 crane truck, received little interest during the previous bidding 
opportunities.  The District has placed a for-sale sign in the window of Unit 4B, and has 
recently started to receive interest in the vehicle.  
 
Staff recommends reducing Unit 4 B's minimum bid to $10,000. The Board may also 
consider determining a sales price for an agency-to-agency sale.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The proposed minimum bid for Unit 4B, the 2009 Ford F450 Crane Truck, will be $10,000. 
 
The proposed minimum bid for the camera equipment associated with Unit 17B will be 
$500. 
 
 

HCSD 2/25/2025 Board of Directors Agenda Pack Page 40 of 40


	C.1.pdf (p.1-2)
	C.2.pdf (p.3-6)
	D.1.pdf (p.7)
	D.4.pdf (p.8-9)
	F.1.pdf (p.10-13)
	ParksDepartmentAgendaReportSupportingResolution 2025-03RC02202025.pdf (p.1-2)
	Draft Resolution 2025-03 Parks Study.pdf (p.3-4)

	F.2a.pdf (p.14-37)
	F.2.pdf (p.1-2)
	20250221112741.pdf (p.3-24)

	F.3.pdf (p.38-39)

